

REFERENCE TITLE: pesticides; PFAS; herbicide; prohibition

State of Arizona
House of Representatives
Fifty-seventh Legislature
Second Regular Session
2026

HB 2642

Introduced by
Representatives Liguori: Biasiucci, Fink, Gutierrez, Stahl Hamilton

AN ACT

AMENDING SECTION 3-352, ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES; RELATING TO THE
REGULATION OF AGRICULTURE.

(TEXT OF BILL BEGINS ON NEXT PAGE)

1 Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Arizona:

2 Section 1. Section 3-352, Arizona Revised Statutes, is amended to
3 read:

4 3-352. Prohibited acts

5 A. It is unlawful for any person WHO IS acting independently or as
6 agent to distribute:

7 1. Any pesticide that ~~has not been~~ IS NOT registered pursuant to
8 section 3-351, or ~~any pesticide~~ if any ~~of the~~ claims ~~made for it~~ or any ~~of~~
9 ~~the~~ directions for ~~its~~ THE PESTICIDE'S use differ in substance from the
10 representations made in connection with ~~its~~ THE PESTICIDE'S registration,
11 or if the composition of ~~a~~ THE pesticide differs from ~~its~~ THE PESTICIDE'S
12 composition as represented in connection with ~~its~~ THE PESTICIDE'S
13 registration, but at the discretion of the director, a change in the
14 labeling or formula of a pesticide may be made within a registration
15 period without requiring reregistration of the product.

16 2. Any pesticide unless it is in the registrant's or the
17 manufacturer's unbroken immediate container and there is affixed to such
18 container, and to the outside container or wrapper of the retail package,
19 if there is one, through which the required information on the immediate
20 container cannot be clearly read, a label bearing:

21 (a) The name and address of the manufacturer, registrant or person
22 for whom manufactured.

23 (b) The name, brand or trademark under which the article is sold.

24 (c) The net weight or measure of the content subject, however, to
25 such reasonable variations as the state may permit.

26 3. Any pesticide that contains any substance or substances in
27 quantities THAT ARE highly toxic to humans, determined as provided in
28 section 3-343, unless the label bears, in addition to any other matter
29 required by this article:

30 (a) Warning statements or symbols required by regulation.

31 (b) A statement of a practical treatment, ~~OR OF~~ first aid or
32 otherwise in case of poisoning CAUSED by the pesticide.

33 4. Any pesticide that is adulterated or misbranded, ~~or~~ or any device
34 that is misbranded.

35 5. Any pesticide ~~the label of which~~ THAT does not ~~contain~~ BEAR A
36 LABEL THAT INCLUDES THE necessary information, ~~which information the~~
37 ~~director has prescribed by rule~~ AS PRESCRIBED BY THE DIRECTOR BY RULE.

38 6. BEGINNING FROM AND AFTER DECEMBER 31, 2027, ANY PESTICIDE THAT
39 CONTAINS PERFLUOROALKYL OR POLYFLUOROALKYL SUBSTANCES OR THAT CONTAINS ANY
40 AMOUNT OF A SUBSTANCE THAT BELONGS TO THE CLASS OF FLUORINATED ORGANIC
41 CHEMICALS WITH TWO OR MORE FULLY FLUORINATED CARBON ATOMS.

42 7. BEGINNING FROM AND AFTER DECEMBER 31, 2027, ANY HERBICIDE THAT
43 CONTAINS GLYPHOSATE.

1 B. It is unlawful:

2 1. For any person to detach, alter, deface or destroy, wholly or in
3 part, any label or labeling provided for in this article or rules adopted
4 under this article, or to add any substance to, or take any substance
5 from, a pesticide in a manner that may defeat the purposes of this
6 article.

7 2. For any person to use for ~~his~~ THE PERSON'S own advantage or to
8 reveal, other than to the director or THE proper officials or employees of
9 ~~the~~ THIS state or to the courts of ~~the~~ THIS state in response to a
10 subpoena, or to physicians, or in emergencies to pharmacists and other
11 qualified persons for use in ~~the preparation of~~ PREPARING antidotes, any
12 information relative to formulas of products acquired by authority of
13 section 3-351.